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Kevin Haddock

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

( \
Originally aired: wednesday July 24, 2024
Writer: Jemaine Clement, Iain Morris, Taika Waititi
Director: Taika Waititi
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Jemaine Clement (Wrongness), James Dryden (Mr. Haddock), Jonny
Brugh (Damon), Katlyn Wong (Madame Chung), Zoe Ventoura (Cas-
sandra), Ben Fransham (John), Mike Minogue (Headface), Karen
O’Leary (Stomachface), Shane Rangi (Demon), Nikita Chronis (Xan-
thus), George Dimarelos (Ophelestes), George Houvardas (Ajax The
Lesser), Vasilios Kostidis (Panthous), Michael Valamios (Odysseus),
Sotiris Tzelios (Amphimachus), Phil Anstis (Alan), Brad Harding
(Viking Warrior), Tom Kerr (Captain), Campbell Wilkins (Scott)

Sumimary: A boy finds it hard to make the most of his ordinary life until a bum-
bling gang of thieves lands in his bedroom.

Kevin Haddock is an unusual child. We
see that his bedroom is filled with fig-
urines and dioramas of historical people
and events. His alarm clock goes off, and
he erupts out of his bed to run to his par-
ents’ room to remind them it’s his birth-
day.

Once his parents, Mike and Lisa, have
the appropriate lighting sorted, they wish
him a happy birthday and ask where he’d
like to go, anticipating it won’t be very in-
teresting for them.

He takes them to Woodhenge, an at-
mospheric Neolithic precursor to Stonehenge, where short concrete pillars mark the spots where
timber posts once stood. Kevin’s sister, Saffron, is unimpressed. His parents suggest they
should’ve gone to Stonehenge. At least there, they could go to the gift shop. Kevin reminds them
the ancients wouldn’t have had a gift shop.

When he tries to inspire them to think of why Woodhenge would’ve been built, they make
jokes about how boring it is. At home, Saffron asks him why he couldn’t have a normal birthday
party with normal friends. Hurt but hiding it, Kevin assures her she’ll understand when she’s
older.

At school, Kevin regales his classmates with facts about the history of footy. When he’s done,
he’s once again the last one chosen for teams. A kid on crutches with a neck brace and arm in a
sling is picked before him. Picking up a ball, Kevin demonstrates how uncoordinated he is.

He spends the day alone. He eats by himself while reading a book on historical figures. As
he walks home alone, he plays with sticks. He talks to himself while he paints a model of a
mammoth, discussing that there is no evidence humans ever domesticated or rode mammoths
despite the species coexisting during the Ice Age. As he mimics a mammoth’s call, his wardrobe
begins to rumble, and light shines out between the doors.

At his kitchen table, Kevin plays RISK with himself, expanding on each of his moves with
relevant historical trivia. That night, he has another conversation with himself as he paints a
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figurine of an English Crusader while dressed as one. Suddenly, his table moves, causing him to
drop his figurine. The wardrobe is rumbling more dramatically now, moving away and back to
the wall. Sand pours out from under the doors.

Calling out to his mother that his wardrobe is moving, he opens the closet and is taken aback
to discover a gateway to a beach. So, of course, he walks through to take a look. While surveying
the landscape, he realizes a crowd of armed men are running his way. When they start shooting
arrows at him, he runs back to his closet, screaming.

Jumping back through the closet, he rolls onto the far side of his bed while a fur-clad warrior
shuts the closet doors and holds them against would-be attackers. Kevin goes to find his parents.

He finds them watching TV and reports that a Viking warrior is in his room, holding off a
horde of angry Saxons. His parents tell him it was a dream despite the noises of battle from
upstairs.

Returning to his room, Kevin informs the Viking that this is all a dream. The light from inside
the closet dims, and the Saxon attack ceases. Kevin seizes the opportunity to ask the Viking why
Vikings stopped raiding other communities and adopted agrarianism. His voice trails off as he
discovers his bedroom wall has transformed into a portal to the bank of a swiftly flowing river.
The Viking boards a rowboat. Kevin asks if he needs help, interpreting "Nay" to mean yes. He
opens his bedroom door and apologizes to his parents before he runs off to adventure. Turning
back, he runs straight into a very real bedroom wall.

Waking up on the living room couch, he tries to explain to his parents what happened. How-
ever, they are convinced he should stop studying history and learn more about technology so
he can be ready for the future. He gets frustrated and gives up trying to talk to his parents. His
father praises Kevin for learning that sometimes, you should just give up.

That night, Kevin checks his wardrobe carefully with a flashlight before settling down to sleep.
The rumbling begins again. The doors burst open, and several people emerge, discussing how
they think they’'ve escaped from someone ... unless he knows everything, including everything
they’re thinking.

Kevin turns his flashlight back on and shines it on the intruders, two women and three men.
Once they realize he’s just a kid, they relax. The leader, Penelope, directs Widgit to lay out the
map. Widgit lays it out on Kevin’s bed.

As the time bandits try to interpret the map, Kevin deduces from their conversation that
they are horse thieves. Penelope asks him who he is and why he’s there. He introduces himself
and explains that they’re in his bedroom. She replies that his room is also a "time egress" — a
transtemporal portal and an extremely dangerous place to live."

She asks him to give her a moment to confer with Widgit so they can escape the Supreme
Being. At that moment, Kevin’s closet doors burst open, and a light pours out. A voice booms,
"The Supreme Being knows all!" Everyone screams and scrambles away from the closet, where a
giant head is emerging, demanding they return the map.

As they cower against the wall, Widgit tells Bittelig to push the wall as the map says it's an
exit. After punching a hole in it, Bittelig pushes it, and the falls, causing other walls like it to fall
like dominos, revealing a never-ending series of Kevin’'s room. The Supreme Being’s multi-faced
head sculpture enters Kevin’s room. The intruders leap into the void. Kevin follows, screaming
as he slides past innumerable iterations of his bedroom window.

They land on the deck of a ship. Kevin tries to tell himself it’s all a dream. Penelope wants
to know how he came with them. Judy reveals that she’s an empath. Bittleig asks if he’s a
replacement for Susan. Witgit points out that Susan is irreplaceable.

Choosing to deal with Kevin’s presence later, the thieves discuss where they are. Kevin looks
around and realizes they are on a ship in the fleet of the Chinese pirate queen, Madame Chung.
He places them in 1810 Macau, in the midst of the final battle between Chung and the British
Navy. Witgit takes credit for the knowledge just before the Chinese pirates begin shooting arrows
at them, and the British Navy starts firing cannon balls at the Chinese pirates.

The others convince Kevin it’s not a dream, and he runs with them below decks through a
door Widgit mistakes for a portal. Kevin asks them about the map. Penelope explains it is not just
a map. "It’s a celestial chart of the anomalies and portals of the intricately interwoven intricacies
of time, space, good and bad, and all the dimensions, including one, two, three, and four."

It's a map that allows them to travel throughout the universe—except for one corner bit
that got torn off. Just then, Madame Chung enters, speaking Cantonese. Everyone except Kevin
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responds in kind. He asks if they all speak Cantonese, and they deny it. Alto pulls a leather
skull cap with earflaps out and puts it on Kevin’s head. It’s a translation cap, and now Kevin can
understand everyone.

Madame Chung threatens all sorts of violence. Penelope suggests they leave. Chung demands
they identify themselves. A fight is about to break out when Kevin steps forward and offers her
some advice on how to defeat her enemies. When the ship takes another hit, Chung orders the
bosun to change course, according to Kevin’'s counsel.

The new course takes them past the portal. Penelope plans to leave Kevin behind. However,
when Chung offers him a place at her side as her soothsayer, Penelope changes her mind and
insists Kevin comes with them.

A portal appears in the water, resembling a whirlpool. The thieves jump one by one, and Pene-
lope helps Kevin onto the prow before jumping herself. Kevin takes a deep breath and follows.

They land in a field. When Kevin confesses he can’t read the future, he just knows the past
really well, Penelope plans to abandon him again. He looks around and gasps when he realizes
he’s seeing Stonehenge being constructed. Although Penelope sees no value in that, Kevin rushes
to ask the builders why they are raising Stonehenge.

Kevin and the supervisor have a circular discussion about Stonehenge’s purpose. The super-
visor reveals that its main purpose is profit and points to where they've set up a gift shop selling
mini Stonehenges. Kevin is disheartened to realize his parents were right but still thinks it's
pretty cool.

Gathered around a campfire that evening, Kevin asks about the bandits’ backstories. Penelope
says she goes by Firestorm, and her heart is broken because her fiancé has gone missing. She
introduces Judy, described as the master psychologist, although she reads Kevin completely
wrong. Next is Alto, the master of disguise. Widgit is the master map reader. Last is Bittelig, who
has the strength of seven average men.

They explain they're running from the Supreme Being because he was their boss, and they
upset him by stealing his map. Kevin suggests stealing is wrong. Most of the bandits groan and
suggest abandoning Kevin. Bittelig says they should at least take him home. Penelope agrees to
take Kevin home to Bingley in 2024 after they steal the horse.

Deep below the earth’s surface, Pure Evil sits upon a black stone throne surrounded by
demons. He calls his spy, Damon, to report on what’s been going on in the Sky Citadel. Pure Evil
bemoans his dream of turning the universe inside out. If only he had the plans for the universe.
Damon reports the plans exist and they’ve been stolen.

Inspired to take the map from the thieves, Pure Evil pontificates on the universe he will create
once he has the power. Damon tells him the Supreme Being is looking for the map in Bingley,
2024. Pure Evil calls for Fianna, the Huntress.

At dawn, a portal opens. Kevin and the bandits pass through it and arrive on the other side,
falling from the sky and landing on their faces. Hiking over the ridge, they see their target. Kevin
is stunned to see it’s the city of Troy.

He realizes they plan to steal the Trojan Horse. Penelope scoffs when he tells them it’s too big
to steal but admits it’s too big when she sees it. While Kevin explains the purpose of the Trojan
Horse, the bandits chalk the heist up as a failure. While they’re talking, a Greek soldier opens
the door in the Horse’s leg. Kevin asks to see inside, and the soldier invites them in.

They all climb up into the Trojan Horse. Penelope argues with Kevin and the Greek warriors
about whether the plan will work. Meanwhile, two Trojan guards come out to look at the horse.
They admire the workmanship but decide it’s suspicious and they should burn it.

They set fire to the horse, but a nobleman comes by and orders them to stop burning it and
bring it into the city. Cassandra calls down from the battlements and warns them that the Horse
will be Troy’s downfall. They laugh at her prediction.

Once inside the city, Penelope directs everyone to steal for five minutes before they have
to jump through the next portal. Kevin wanders around, looking closely at the Trojan Horse.
Cassandra finds him and explains her curse is she sees the future, but no one believes her.
Kevin sympathizes.

She tells him he’s important and makes many predictions about his future adventures. Lastly,
she tells him to stick with the bandits because he’s going to save the universe. The time bandits
reconvene and decide to take Kevin home.
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In Pure Evil's throne room, Fianna appears. He orders her to lie in wait as a rock in Bingley
until she can steal the map and bring it to him. He directs her to let nothing get in her way.
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Mayan

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

4 )
Originally aired: Wednesday July 24, 2024
Writer: Jemaine Clement, Iain Morris, Taika Waititi
Director: Taika Waititi
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Jemaine Clement (Wrongness), James Dryden (Mr. Haddock), Génesis
Mancheren Ab’aj (Lady Sak K'uk), Jose Palma (Balam Cupul), Jonny
Brugh (Damon), Ben Fransham (John), Mike Minogue (Headface),
Karen O’Leary (Stomachface), Shane Rangi (Demon), Roy Iro (Jasper),
Oscar Kightley (Jasper), Ruben Francis (Bobby), Marie Dorin (Edith),
Janaye Henry (Helen), Dane Noonan (The Cherub), Richard Chapman
(Neanderthal Howler), Abby Damen (Neanderthal Faza), Esau Mora
(Town Welcomer), Simena Ccasa (Avocado Lady), Signy Bjorg Gud-
laugsdottir (Monica), Simon Manns (Lars)

Sumimary: On a whirlwind journey to ancient Mexico, Kevin and the Bandits take
part in a feast. Pure Evil sends huntress Fianna on a quest.

Kevin and the Time Bandits erupt out of a
snowbank and arrive in the Ice Age which
Penelope assumes is Kevin’s home. As
they prepare to leave him, Kevin protests
this isn’t his home and definitely not his
time.

The Time Bandits insist he’s home,
pointing to a nearby stick shelter and the
two Neanderthals inside and identifying
them as his parents. Kevin pleads with
them that this is neither his house nor
his family, but they depart. As he stands
there shivering, the Bandits huddle to
confer, sneaking looks at him. Finally, they call for him to come with them.

Kevin rejoins the Bandits, and Widgit admits that he got the time wrong, but they are where
Kevin’s house will stand in 2024. Judy gives some directions, which rubs Penelope the wrong
way. As Kevin and the Bandits head for the next portal, a nearby rock briefly manifests glowing
eyes.

In a dense rainforest, a portal opens and spits out a screaming Kevin and the Time Bandits,
also screaming. Getting up, Kevin confirms this is not his home. Penelope directs him to figure
out where and when they are. He wanders off into the forest. While he’s gone, the others confer
on whether he is actually knowledgeable or just a child.

He returns suddenly, excited to share that he knows where and when they are. Following him
back through the foliage, they come to a vista point where they can see a huge city with an ornate
pyramid in the center. Kevin identifies their surroundings as what will be modern-day Mexico in
the classical Mayan Period.

As they approach the city, Kevin stops to describe in gory detail what he’s read about Mayan
ritualistic human sacrifice. This is a bit of a downer. As the group continues on, they run into a
large group of Mayan warriors.
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After some tense initial moments, the warriors welcome them to the city and invite them to
meet the Queen. Kevin still believes they are being brought to the Queen to be sacrificed. The
residents greet them with fruit gifts and bring them to the throne room of the queen, Lady Sak
Kuk.

Lady Sak K'uk welcomes them warmly and arranges for a feast. As the Maya set up the dining
hall, Penelope gathers the Time Bandits and directs them to spread out and find out what is
worth stealing.

While everyone eats, Judy asks Sak K'uk how she administers and runs the city, thinking she
might step into a leadership role with the Time Bandits. Sak K'uk advises her to make decisions
rather than wait for things to happen.

Penelope learns there’s a city treasury where all the most valuable items are kept. To her
delight, one of the Mayan warriors offers to show her the treasure.

Kevin sits at the kids’ table with Sak K'uk’s son, who comments on the many sacrifices his
mother has made for him. This catches Kevin’s attention, and he runs to find Alto, Bittelig, and
Widgit to tell them they're still in danger of being sacrificed.

Penelope joins them and tells them they are all being taken to the treasure room after the
feast. Kevin remains suspicious. The others try to warn Penelope, but she won’t hear them. She
pulls Kevin aside and scolds him for frightening the others. Kevin admits his parents say that he
always does the wrong thing. Penelope advises him to talk with his parents when he gets home.

In the treasure room, Sak Kuk shows them her people’s most precious heirlooms. When
Penelope tries to pocket a carved jade toad, Kevin makes her put it back. He reminds her that
he’d read the Maya would feast and give the VIP treatment to sacrifice victims before dressing
them in fine clothes and taking them to the top of the temple and sacrificing them. Penelope
points out they've only done the first two things, just as a warrior brings them fine clothes to
wear for a special ritual at the top of the temple.

Penelope admits Kevin’s right, and they both decline the clothes before running to warn the
others. Judy’s still talking with Sak K'uk, but Penelope manages to convey the danger she’s in.
When the queen mentions the beautiful ritual they have planned for their guests, Kevin and the
Bandits take off, running.

They stop when they reach a cliff. The Mayan warriors arrive behind them and escort them
back to the temple. In the temple’s topmost chamber, the queen holds out a ceremonial dagger.
This terrifies Kevin and the Time Bandits, but the warriors cut off all their exits. Alto begins to
offer himself in place of his friends but backs out at the last moment.

When asked if he’s okay, Alto explains he was volunteering for the ritual but doesn’t want to
do it now. The queen asks why he doesn’t want to take part in the eating-the-fruit-and-watching-
the-sunset ritual. Realizing they are in no danger, Penelope comes clean with the assumptions
they have made. The queen is confused about why they’d think that about the Maya.

Kevin is pushed forward and admits that he read that information on Wikipedia. When ques-
tioned about Wikipedia’s sources, he confesses most of it is written by invaders. Sak K'uk rec-
ommends never believing invaders’ accounts. She discloses that when she invades people, she
always makes them sound worse than they are, making up ridiculous and horrible stories about
them.

Alto notes that it is very rare to meet people who don’t always kill other people. Sak K'uk’s son
reveals that they do kill people sometimes. Sak K'uk says that’s different. They only kill invaders,
marauders and thieves. The Time Bandits get nervous again when they hear this. The queen
asks if they are bandits and if they've stolen anything. Her son orders their bags and pouches
searched.

When Penelope’s bag is searched, the warrior pulls out a small green ... avocado. Thanking
them for their hospitality, the Time Bandits beat a hasty retreat.

Back at the cliff, Widgit insists a portal should be nearby. Judy spots it in the space out below
the cliff. Kevin recalls that Cassandra predicted he would jump off a cliff with the Time Bandits.
With Judy making the decision, everyone holds hands, and they leap.

Kevin’s parents are in front of the TV, reading reviews and spoilers about the show they are
watching on their phones. In their backyard, the rock manifests glowing eyes again. Pure Evil
watches from his throne room and tells Fianna, "It is time."

Fianna breaks out of the rock. Inside the house, Lisa and Mike hear noises from upstairs and
call up to Kevin kudos for playing video games. In Kevin’s room, he and the Time Bandits emerge

8



Time Bandits Episode Guide

from his wardrobe. The portal through his wall is still open, as it’s only been a moment since
they leaped through that. Sounds of the Supreme Being returning frighten everyone out of his
room and into the upstairs corridor.

Once the Supreme Being exits back through the wardrobe, they relax, and Penelope bids
Kevin farewell. He thanks them for letting him be a part of their team for a while.

In the yard, Fianna approaches the house. Upstairs, the Time Bandits return to Kevin all the
items they’d stolen from his room. Downstairs, Lisa and Mike continue to focus on their phones
until Fianna bangs on the back door. They turn around and, seeing Fianna through the glass,
demand to know who she is. Fianna shoots lasers from her eyes, and Kevin’s parents scream.
Kevin drops his stuff and runs downstairs to find lumps of coal where his parents were sitting.

The Time Bandits come down with him and tell him his parents have been "coaled" by a de-
mon. A thumping outside is heard, and Fianna peeks through a window. Everyone runs scream-
ing back upstairs. Kevin’s carrying his coaled parents.

Running back upstairs, Widgit tries to open the portal in the wardrobe. Downstairs, Fianna
breaks a window to get in. When the portal opens again, the Time Bandits say goodbye (again) to
Kevin. He calls to Penelope, calling her Firestorm, and asks her if he can go back in time to save
his parents. She hesitates but decides to take Kevin with them. Fianna gets upstairs. Saffron is
obliviously listening to music on headphones in her room. Penelope and Kevin escape through
the wardrobe just before Fianna gets into his bedroom.

In the Sky Citadel, the Supreme Being removes his giant head and tells Jasper and Jasper that
he’s had a terrible day. As he makes his way through the halls, answering creation questions and
partaking in a questionable cup of "cherub spice," he tells them the Time Bandits are traveling
with the map and living portals open all over the place.

Arriving at his office, he shares his super secret project with the Jaspers, not realizing Damon
is behind them, spying.
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Medieval

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

4 N
Originally aired: Wednesday July 31, 2024
Writer: Jemaine Clement & Iain Morris
Director: Jackie van Beek
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Jemaine Clement (Wrongness), Con O’Neill (Sheriff of Nottingham),
Matt King (De Plume), Shaun Micallef (Town Mayor), Jonny Brugh (Da-
mon), Ben Fransham (John), Mike Minogue (Headface), Karen O’Leary
(Stomachface), Shane Rangi (Demon), Kris Beattie (Guard Jeremy), By-
ron Coll (Soldier Chop), Barnie Duncan (Soldier Timothy), Ella Hope-
Higginson (Soldier Laura), Jackson Tozer (Soldier James), Chris Ryan
(Dennis), Yvette Parsons (Screaming Woman), Nigel Collins (Singing
Minstrel), Thomas La Hood (Merek The Snail Juggler), Sarah Houbolt
(Patsy), Carmel McGlone (Chained Woman), Katlyn Wong (Madame
Chung), Raybon Kan (First Mate), Signy Bjorg Gudlaugsdottir (Mon-
ica), Simon Manns (Lars)

Summary: The Bandits pose as dragon slayers in England and feel the wrath of a
wicked sheriff. Saffron embarks on her own search for answers.

The episode opens with Saffron returning
home from school to an empty house, an-
noyed at having had to get herself there.
After complaining loudly there’s nothing
to eat while staring at an incredibly well-
stocked fridge, she notices the smashed-
in back door, rolls her eyes in disgust,
and sets the robot vacuum to clean up
the mess.

Opening the door to Kevin's room,
she hears a noise from the wardrobe
and opens it, thinking Kevin’s hiding in-
side. Instead, she discovers two Polyne-
sian men rowing a woven reed catamaran on a large expanse of water. She closes the doors,
comments, "Random," and opens it again to find a typical wardrobe. The wall on the other side
of the room starts to rattle and she turns to look at it.

Kevin sits next to Judy in a forest and opens his fanny pack to look at the lumps of coal that
used to be his parents. He asks the Time Bandits what was the creature that coal-ed his parents.
Widgit explains that was Fianna, a demon known as The Huntress. They used to date.

Judy wonders if Pure Evil sent Fianna after them. Penelope is terrified at the prospect and
has no idea how they’ll escape The Huntress. Bittelig is foraging in the forest nearby for edible
plants.

Kevin asks if his parents are dead. Alto comments they don’t look well (since they're lumps of
coal.) Penelope points out that with the map, they can try to time travel to before Kevin’s parents
are coal-ed and stop it from happening.

Bittelig returns, announcing that he’s found something to eat. As they follow him through the
forest, Kevin spots a triceratops skull. On the riverbank, Bittelig shows the others some giant
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eggs. As they discuss how they’d like to eat them, Judy spots the layer of said eggs, a pteranodon
that glides down from a nearby cliff and lands behind Bittelig. Penelope advises him to put the
eggs down carefully.

The pteranodon picks Bittelig up and flings him about. The other Time Bandits run away,
looking for the next portal. Just as they spot it, Kevin arrives, dragging the triceratops skull with
him and pointing out that it isn’t a fossil, meaning they must be in prehistoric times. The bandits
scream at him to leave the skull and run for the portal but he refuses to leave it behind.

On the other side of the portal, the bandits crash through the roof of a small hut which
immediately collapses. Emerging through the still-standing front door, Penelope compensates
the residents outside with a small candleholder. They take a moment to commemorate Kevin as
they believe the pteranodon got him. Just then, he arrives, falling through the air into the hut's
ruins still carrying the skull. Penelope gives the resident another candleholder.

In his throne room, Pure Evil plays Monopoly with his minion. Damon arrives with intel on
Supreme Being. He informs him that Supreme Being has a secret project but doesn’t have any
details on it. Screaming starts and the minion answers the vid-call from Fianna. She tells Pure
Evil that she doesn’t have the map but she did coal Kevin’s parents. Meanwhile, she has some
clothing with Kevin’s scent and will continue to hunt him.

Kevin and the Time Bandits arrive in a town where the townsfolk are dancing around a
maypole. They identify the newcomers as strangers and deduce they must be witches. Kevin
steps forward to reassure them he is not a boy witch, still dragging the triceratops skull which
the townsfolk think is a dragon skull. The bandits get a better welcome as dragonslayers so
Penelope jumps on that. The Mayor tours them around the fair, raising the alarm when a cat is
spotted. The Pope has recently declared cats to be instruments of Satan and should all be killed.

In the tavern, Penelope points out a tapestry image of a man and tells Judy it looks like her
missing fiancé, Gavin. Meanwhile, Bittelig and Widgit ask the Mayor if there’s anything besides
acorns to eat. The Mayor explains there’s a famine going on and, also, they’d like to ask a
favor of the dragonslayers. Penelope encourages the bandits to agree to whatever they need. She
announces they’re ready to fight the town’s dragon, knowing that dragons don’t exist. The Mayor
clarifies that they want them to fight the Sheriff and his army. The Sheriff has been taking their
food and torturing them when they have nothing to give him.

Left alone together, the bandits brainstorm how to get out of this obligation. The Mayor arrives
to offer them twigs as weapons. As the bandits prepare to run into the woods to hide, the Sheriff’s
goon, De Plume arrives to collect the peasants’ harvest. The Mayor informs him the dragonslayers
have agreed to fight his army on their behalf.

De Plume asks if Penelope and her crew are challenging his army there and then. Penelope
defers to another day and he calls them cowards. She takes umbrage at that but with Bittelig
apprehended, they are forced to go to the Sheriff's castle.

Locked up in the dungeon, Penelope protests to the others that it isn’t her fault while Kevin
apologizes to his coal parents for making bad choices. When the guards come to take them to
the Sheriff, Bittelig easily breaks out of his shackles and bends the bars on the cell door to show
them which key to use.

When they arrive in the Sheriff's Great Hall, he shows them pictures of the different tortures
he’s come up for them as punishment for being bandits who dared to stand up to his tyranny.
Before he leaves, De Plume tells him they also claim to be dragonslayers. Some guards bring in
the triceratops skull.

The Sheriff declares the skull is not a dragon’s skull because it doesn’t look like the one he has
from when he slayed Fyre-Tongue, the Dreaded Wyrm. His dragon’s skull has been made by tying
together various animal bones, antlers, and horns with twigs. Re-enacting his dragonslaying
moment, he cries out, "Fafnir!" referencing a dragon of Norse mythology.

Kevin points out that the skulls do not look alike because his is a dinosaur skull and the
Sheriff's is a random DIY project. Stunned to be challenged like this, the Sheriff calls Kevin
forward. Penelope tries to stay close, apologizing for Kevin’'s impudence. The Sheriff explains that
he is a very cruel man and intimidates Kevin into silence. He then declares his intention to return
to the village and burn it to the ground if their harvest isn’t ready to collect in the morning.

Meanwhile, Saffron’s now on Madame Chung’s ship, showing her and her sailors pictures
she’s drawn of her family. They recognize Kevin.
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After a discussion with a local witch in the dungeon, the Time Bandits escape and return
to the village to gather their belongings. The Mayor catches them sneaking back in and asks if
they've beaten the Sheriff's forces. Penelope and Alto deliver the message that the Sheriff plans
to burn down the village.

When asked to help, Kevin suggests they should try. Judy wonders if they could use fear
as a weapon. When the Sheriff and De Plume return at dawn, the village square is empty. A
flash grenade is detonated and the villagers all wander through draped in white clothes, looking
sickly. Penelope appears and demonstrates how she can separate her thumb from her hand.
Kevin is next, trussed up with animal bones and showing how he’s trapped people in his cell
phone by playing a video. The soldiers are cowed and frightened but the Sheriff is not impressed.
Distracting Kevin, he takes it away from him and orders his men to tie Kevin, Judy, Alto, and the
witch to the maypole and build a pyre.

Penelope and Widgit stick their heads out of a latrine hole and tell the others they plan to use
the map and enlist the help of the Hun warriors.

As the soldiers prepare to light the fire, Kevin reminds them that they don’t have to do every-
thing the Sheriff tells them to do. They find this hilarious because if they don’t, the Sheriff will
order someone to torture them. Kevin points out that if they all agree not to do any torturing, no
one will get tortured. This results in a mind-blown moment.

When De Plume returns to give the order to burn the people on the pyre and the whole village
except for the pub, the soldiers pass on their new enlightened thinking about torture. De Plume
processes it and throws down his sword. He orders Kevin and the others untied and admits that
all the torturing he’s done in his life has victimized him as well as his actual victims.

De Plume finds the Sheriff playing a game on Kevin’s phone. He takes the phone away and
tells the Sheriff they need to talk.

On Madame Chung’s ship, they've brought Saffron to the place in the water where the Time
Bandits leaped into a portal. Saffron, sitting in a rowboat, completely misinterprets their warn-
ings and plans to leap in herself. Chung and her sailor comment that Saffron’s much nicer than
the demon that visited last.

In the village, Kevin’s explaining evolution and how dinosaurs became birds. The villagers
comment that it all sounds like heresy. Kevin reiterates there’s no such thing as dragons so they
shouldn’t be afraid of them. Or witches. And they have nothing to fear from evolution either.

Penelope, Widgit, and Bittelig return. They’ve been gone for weeks. The Huns did not agree to
help fight the Sheriff's men, having discovered Penelope had stolen from them on her last visit.
Bittelig carries two pteranodon eggs for the villagers. Kevin tells them he’s being forced to get
married the next day since they thought the others weren’t coming back.

The Mayor thanks them for the peace the village enjoys now. Penelope requests payment for
their services. He says they can have anything in the village. Penelope shows them she’s already
stolen the bit of the tapestry with the man she thinks looks like Gavin.

De Plume comes strolling in, expounding on the beauty of the natural world and how everyone
is part of a collective consciousness. As he’s talking, one of the eggs Bittelig brought back hatches
a baby pteranodon. As he’s admiring the miracle of new life, the mother pteranodon’s head
descends on him, picks him up, and eats him while perched on a nearby rooftop.

The villagers scream that dragons are real and accuse Kevin of lying to them as they scramble
for safety in a panic. As the adult pteranodon leaps from rooftop to rooftop, it causes most of
them to collapse under its weight, destroying the village.

The Time Bandits run out of the town and hide under a stone archway. A gargoyle statue falls
to the ground, narrowly missing them. Looking up, they see a cat watching them and discuss
whether it just tried to kill them. Through the eyes of the cat, Mr. Boots, Pure Evil praises the
cat for the attempt. He demands to know where Fianna is since he’s found the bandits.

Back in Troy around 1,200 BCE, Saffron peeks into the city where it’s still being sacked. She
sneaks in. In the middle of the fighting, Fianna stands holding a sweatshirt with a large unicorn
and rainbow printed on it. Giving it a big sniff, she looks straight at the camera with a smile.
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Prohibition

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

4 )
Originally aired: Wednesday July 31, 2024
Writer: Akilah Green
Director: Jeff Tomsic
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Taika Waititi (Supreme Being), Wayne Colley (Bumpy Johnson), Jen
Van Epps (Emmie), Jonny Brugh (Damon), Roy Iro (Jasper), Oscar
Kightley (Jasper), Justin Amankwah (Ernie Fingers), [Ira Munn (Larry
Always Late), Kevin Copeland (Heavy), James Gaylyn (Babyface), An-
drea Solonge (Madame Queenie), Kiri Rose Kendall (Tilly), Tapiwa
Soropa (Doorman), Graham Vincent (Barfly), Matt MacDougall (Abbot),
Tomoka Tsuyuki (Tomoe Gozenn), Signy Bjorg Gudlaugsdottir (Mon-
ica), Simon Manns (Lars)

Summary: Kevin and the Bandits run for their lives during New York’s Harlem
Renaissance. Saffron and an ally work to outwit enemies in Japan.

The episode starts out in 1200 CE Japan
with Saffron, an era we never saw Kevin
and the bandits travel through. It's un-
clear whether the woman archer Saffron
encounters ever saw him, only that she’s
concerned that he’s wronged Saff.

Kevin and the Time Bandits are hang-
ing out in a 700 CE English monastery in
what is quite likely Lindisfarne but prob-
ably not named specifically for reasons.
a : 1 ; In a voiceover address to his coal-ed par-

= - ents, Kevin humble-brags that he’s finally
in a gang despite his father never believing it could happen.

As the bandits hide their presence from the monks, Penelope bemoans the fact there’s nothing
to steal. The monks only have books and the mead they make from honey. They pass through
the next portal into a large warehouse space. Widgit notices that the portal is glitching. He tells
Penelope that while it's doing that, they won’t be able to go anywhere else. On the warehouse
side of the portal, Penelope directs them to cover the portal with a cloth until it stops glitching.

Hearing someone coming into the warehouse, the bandits hide behind crates. Penelope sends
Kevin to find out if it’s a dangerous situation. Kevin overhears the two men who come in talking
about meeting up with another gang. He fills in the others but the gangsters hear them talking.
Penelope directs them to act like they're not there so when one of the gangsters shines a flashlight
on them, they all freeze in place.

Bumpy Johnson invites them out to talk. When asked if they’re the gang, Penelope doesn’t
confirm or deny until Larry Always Late holds up a bag of loot. Bumpy asks for the booze in
exchange for the loot. Bittelig hands over his flask of mead. Bumpy hands it to Ernie Fingers.
Neither of them has ever heard of mead.

When Bumpy tastes it and likes it, Penelope sends the bandits through the portal to the
monastery to steal their mead to sell it to the gangsters. As they make the exchange, Penelope
and Bumpy commiserate on the challenges of leading a gang. Penelope explains that her gang
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doesn’t have a leader per se, that they're more of an egalitarian collective. Bumpy is intrigued by
the idea.

As the gangsters leave with the mead, Bumpy gives Penelope the address for a party that
evening. Outside, they load the booze onto the truck and discuss Penelope, believing her to be a
gang leader named Madame Queenie and Kevin her muscle known as Babyface.

Inside the warehouse, the bandits discover the loot bag is full of cash currency which they
don’t believe has any worth. Kevin has to explain that the cash can be exchanged for goods. The
bandits are skeptical but willing to see if the system he describes works.

Stepping out of the warehouse, Kevin realizes they’re in 1929 New York City during the height
of the Harlem Renaissance. As they walk, Penelope reads the invitation to the party. Kevin warns
them parties can be dangerous, giving an anecdotal example he’d heard second-hand because
he’d never been invited to one. He’s hesitant about attending Bumpy’s party but Alto encourages
him to "live a little."

Back at the warehouse, two gangsters approach the door with a crate of booze. They find the
warehouse empty except for a puddle of mead from a broken bottle Fingers dropped. Tasting it
and realizing it’s alcohol, they wonder if someone’s encroaching on Madame Queenie’s turf. They
agree that’s a dangerous thing to do.

Kevin and the Time Bandits go on a shopping spree for clothes and accessories to blend in
at the party. They arrive at The Corner Store Star, a speakeasy, where Bumpy welcomes them
warmly. They settle in, taking in the environment. Alto is delighted and Penelope loves the luxury
of the club. Widgit, Judy, and Bittelig are less comfortable. At the bar, gangsters are discussing
Penelope and her gang. Queenie’s goons overhear the talk and head out to report to their boss.

While Alto is lured away by the jazz singer’s enchanting scat singing, Bumpy tells Penelope he
plans to try a leaderless approach in his organization. The music picks up the tempo and Bittelig
asks Judy to dance with him. Kevin orders a ginger beer at the bar, inadvertently intimidating
the gangsters who had been discussing his reputation as Babyface.

Bumpy continues to talk with Penelope about the changes to his crew she’s inspired. He takes
his leave, addressing her as Madame Queen. She tells him either name is enough, he doesn’t have
to call her both. Looking at Widgit, she realizes he’s drunk.

At a nearby table, Kevin regales listeners with a story of a girl he liked at school and the boy
who kissed him. They assume Kevin had him whacked. Kevin thinks they're judging him for a
copyright infringement he’d secretly committed.

At the couches, Widgit's in tears talking to Penelope about their lost bandit, Susan. Mean-
while, Alto approaches the singer Emmie to ask about her performance. He tells her that he’s an
actor. She’s impressed.

Elsewhere in the city, the real Madame Queenie is on the phone to a newspaper, directing
them to run ads on voting rights because it's important to educate people about suffrage. Once
that'’s clear, she orders Charlie to smash the windows in on a rival businessman’s establishment.
As a final instruction, she tells him to donate to the childhood reading program.

Her two goons arrive and tell her about the bandits encroaching on her territory. They plan to
pay them a "nice little visit." Queenie clarifies that she wants them to go and scare the encroach-
ers off. She’s all about clarity.

Chatting with his coal parents, Kevin recalls they always wanted him to watch out for Saffron.
He admits he’s forgotten about her until now. However, he assures them that she’s at home and
safe. Of course, she’s in Japan being hunted by Fianna so wrong on both points, Kevin.

Back at the Haddocks’ house, Sky Citadel investigators are going over the scene. A female
investigator declares it a coal-ing. She walks through the events of Fianna’s attack with the
other investigator who takes notes. He asks her if she enjoys working for the Supreme Being
even though he can be demanding and unreasonable. She says her work is a calling, not a job.

In Harlem, Kevin reports to his parents that the bandits have decided to branch out into coun-
terfeiting, drawing their new bills by hand with considerable creative license. Alto and Emmie are
spending a lot of leisure time together, with Alto picking up scat as a new dialect.

The gang continues to steal mead from the monks to sell to Bumps’s crew, but just as the
monks catch Judy and Bittelig in the act, the portal glitches out, trapping them in the monastery.
As Penelope and Widgit debrief this latest development, Queenie’s men arrive.

Outside the warehouse, Emmie drives Alto back after spending the day together. She tells him
that Madame Queenie’s put a hit out on him and his friends. He runs inside to tell Penelope,
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interrupting Queenie’s mens’ invitation for a ride on the water. Alto sees the violin case Babyface
carries and asks if he plays "the jazz." Babyface opens the case to show them his tommy gun.
Penelope, Alto, and Kevin take off running.

They all jump into Emmie’s car. When she asks where their hideout is, Penelope directs her
to take four right turns, driving them around the block back to the warehouse entrance. Inside,
Widgit is trying to reopen the portal to rescue Judy and Bittelig but only manages to see an
echoing series of portals to himself.

Bumpy and Fingers notice the goons chasing Penelope et al at low speed and discuss whether
they should get involved.

In the monastery, the portal reopens, albeit in an unstable way. Judy and Bittelig run for it.
They leap through just in time. Widgit tells them there’s another portal but as they cross the
street, they’re spotted by Queenie’s goons who decide to take them since they've somehow lost
Penelope’s car.

As the others get into the goons’ car, Emmie drives the car in behind them (because they're
still going in circles) and Penelope tells her to follow them. Emmie refuses to follow the gangsters
they're trying to get away from so they dump her and Alto takes over in the driver’s seat.

They find Widgit, Judy, and Bittelig tied to chairs on the docks. They introduce Penelope,
Alto, and Kevin to their "new friends." The goons explain they aren’t friends despite taking them
to "sleep with the fishes" and giving Bittelig new (cement) shoes. Penelope suggests they be more
clear with their threats.

Bumpy arrives and tells the goons to let the bandits they've captured go because they don’t
know who they’re messing with. Bumpy says Penelope is Madame Queenie. The goons tell him
their boss is Madame Queenie. Babyface gets ready to shoot them all.

Madame Queenie arrives. Penelope and Queenie meet and ask Bumpy how he got them mixed
up. Once everything is explained, Penelope offers to clear out of New York City. Widgit says their
next portal is in an empty field near the Jersey Shore. Bumpy knows the field. He and his guys
take the Time Bandits to the field and bid them a fond farewell. Alto asks Emmie to go away with
him. She replies that they've only spoken four times and she doesn’t really know him so no.

In Japan, Saffron’s guide identifies Kevin as someone she’s met. She offers to take Saffron to
where he disappeared into the mists. Just then, she spots Fianna. They run but Saffron stumbles
and Fianna picks her up. Realizing Saffron’s not Kevin, she drops her and leaves. The guide helps
Saffron to her feet, commenting they're lucky to be alive.

Up in the Sky Citadel, Supreme Being shows the Jaspers his secret project, Earth Two. He
plans the Great Reset, wiping out everything on the current Earth so he can make it over again
without the mistakes from his first attempt, specifically humans. Damon listens in from around
the corner. Supreme Being sighs. He can’t do the Great Reset without the map. Furthermore,
he’s concerned that Pure Evil will get the map first. "I shudder to think what will happen," he
tells the Jaspers. They all shudder.
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Georgian

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

( )
Originally aired: Wednesday August 07, 2024
Writer: Melanie Bracewell
Director: Jeff Tomsic
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Jemaine Clement (Pure Evil), Mark Gatiss (Earl of Sandwich), Ben
Fransham (John), Mike Minogue (Headface), Karen O’Leary (Stomach-
face), Shane Rangi (Demon), Alex Gibson-Giorgio (Casanova), Ginette
McDonald (Martha), Iain Morris (Duelling Second), Wesley Dowdell
(Footman), Zoé Bell (Fainting Lady), Timmie Cameron (Fancy Guest),
Stephen Gledhill (Sandwich’s Advisor), Miranda Manasiadis (Lady
Sandwich), Olivia Parker (Martha’s Assistant), Roy Iro (Jasper), Imaan
Hadchiti (Sergeant Lewis), Francesca Mills (Detective Katherine), Rob
MacBride (Sandwich’s Second Second)

Sumimary: While searching for Kevin's home, the Bandits cross paths with
Casanova and the Earl of Sandwich. Penelope is challenged to a duel.

Kevin and the bandits sit around a camp-
fire near the recently erected Stonehenge
chewing on sticks for sustenance. Widgit
predicts that this will be an area where
many portals will manifest soon. Pene-
lope outlines their plan to use the right
portal to save Kevin’s parents and steal
their food. Meanwhile, they plan to con-
tinue running from the Supreme Being.

Just then, a portal opens and the
floating multi-faced head of the Supreme
Being emerges, announcing his intent to
make them cower and return his map.
Penelope tells everyone to run but Judy senses something isn’t right. She approaches the head
and it starts to power down and falls over. Jasper climbs out from the head and warns them not
to give the Supreme Being the map because he’s planning something very bad. The portal in the
central lintel stone opens and Kevin and the bandits run through while Jasper repeats that they
must not let the Supreme Being get the map.

On the other side of the portal, they fall from the sky onto a well-manicured lawn. Widgit
sees a large manor house ahead of them and tells Kevin he’s home. Kevin points out this looks
nothing like his house. Widgit checks the map and realizes he’s a few miles off. Kevin adds that
he’s a few centuries off too.

Recognizing there is a party in progress, the bandits try to gain entry to get at the food. As
they are being barred due to their attire, a woman screams. All eyes turn to a man disembarking
a carriage. He tosses his hair and more women squeal his name, "Casanova!" before swooning.
Every woman faints as he passes by except Judy. This stumps him and he shoots smoldering
glances at a couple of recovering ladies to send them into additional vapors to reassure himself
his powers are still working. With a last look at the stoic, slightly befuddled, Judy, he enters the
building.
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Taking some outerwear off the fainted women, the bandits and Kevin run around the manor
to the kitchen door. Kevin makes friends with and frees the turnspit dog while the other look for
more clothes they can liberate. Finding the pantry, they make use of the linens and flour to turn
themselves into Georgian nobility.

Upon entering the ballroom, they find platters stacked high with sandwiches. As Kevin helps
himself, the Earl of Sandwich approaches him and tells him how he invented the sandwiches
he’s displayed at his pineapple party. (By the way, "pineapple parties" were another actual thing
that existed.) Penelope finds a pineapple displayed on a lit candelabra in a nearby room.

Alto finds the performers and discusses the art of acting with them, impressing Martha, the
impresario of the Theatre Royal Drury Lane, with his eyebrow expressiveness. She recruits him
to play the best part in her next production.

In the main room, Judy has attached actual baskets to her hips as panniers under her dress.
As she moves from table to table, she fills the baskets with food. Casanova spots her and ap-
proaches her. He’'s amazed when she doesn’t pass out from his greeting. Bittelig watches from
across the room where he’s standing with Kevin, unimpressed with how Casanova is flirting with
Judy. Casanova informs Judy he’s the world’s greatest lover. She questions the source of that
list. He is intrigued by her aloofness.

Penelope calls Bittelig over. In the next room, she and Widgit demonstrate a trick with the
map that seems to transport it from one place to another. To cheer Kevin up, she offers him
some pineapple and shows him another magic trick with spoons she plans on stealing.

Outside the window, Pure Evil watches them through the eyes of a long-haired white cat. He
scoffs at their plan to steal spoons when they hold a map that can transport them anywhere in
space and time. He believes knives and forks are better because they are sharp and therefore
evil. The demons around him argue that spoons can be evil. He doesn’t appreciate the feedback
and disintegrates the usual demon, John.

At the Earl of Sandwich’s party, he gathers his guests and leads them to view the pineapple
only to discover the bandits eating it. The Earl berates them, revealing the pineapple was an
expensive RENTED one. He bemoans the fact he’ll die in debtors’ prison over the pineapple. Kevin
offers to replace the eaten pineapple. The Earl doesn’t believe he can afford it and regrets allowing
the child to enjoy his invention, the sandwich. Kevin questions whether he really invented it and
the Earl takes offence.

He challenges Kevin to a duel. Penelope intercedes, stating that he can’t duel a child. The Earl
takes offense to that and challenges her to a duel. He sets the time and place as the next day
at noon in the dueling pit. Around the fire in the stables that night, Judy suggests they leave.
Alto tells them they can’t leave because they have to come to see his play. He expects them all to
show up even though they have to go to the duel.

In the Ice Age, Saffron falls through a sky portal and lands in a blizzard. She gets up and
starts fighting her way through, calling for Kevin.

In his throne room, Pure Evil checks in with Fianna. She admits she hasn’t caught the bandits
yet because she took a detour. Pure Evil warns her not to take any more detours.

In the stables, Casanova finds Judy and declares his infatuation with her. He asks her to run
away with him. She declines. Nearby, Bittelig smiles at her response. Penelope curls up with the
piece of tapestry she took from the Medieval town.

Back in the Medieval town, Detective Katherine examines the ruins of the market. She tells
Sergeant Lewis they need to report back to the Supreme Being. Lewis suggests she meet some
other people before they do that.

At the manor house, Bittelig tells Widgit about having a dream. This is a new experience
because the Supreme Being doesn'’t let the people working for him to have them. They discuss
what Jasper meant about the Supreme Being planning something bad. Bittelig expresses the
hope that no one else will die. Widgit agrees but then they remember Penelope and the duel and
run off.

Alto arrives at the theatre. Martha hands him a script and tells him he’s on in an hour. He
accepts the script, The Tragedie of Macbeth, with gratitude.

At the dueling grounds, Penelope waits for the Earl of Sandwich. He arrives and the weapons
are offered. The duel begins and Penelope fires at the Earl while he fires straight up in the air.
She misses him entirely but everyone is shocked that she would try to kill him. He’s so insulted
by this breach of protocol that he challenges her to another duel.
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At the theatre, Alto is about to go on but notices the seats he’s saved for the bandits are still
empty. He rushes out and stands between Penelope and the Earl before they can engage in their
second duel. He makes a speech about forgiveness and compromise. It's a touching speech but
the Earl is irked that he was interrupted and insists they begin counting the paces again.

A portal opens nearby and Fianna falls through. She arrives at the dueling ground just as the
Earl turns to fire his weapon. The bandits run. Fianna follows them through the dueling ground.
The Earl states that she’s trespassing and challenges her to a duel. She’s offered a weapon,
chooses a gun, and shoots him point blank before he’s even done explaining the rules of the
duel.

Kevin and the bandits run through the manor trying to escape Fianna. As they run out
the door, Casanova jumps out to intercept Judy. She evades him and runs, telling him they're
running from a demon. He declares that he’ll wait for her forever. When Fianna arrives, pursuing
them, he approaches her with his pick-up line but she growls at him and he runs. A dog bites
down on her leg and won’t let go.

In the Ice Age, Saffron huddles under a rock outcropping and tries to start a fire. Nearby, a
Neanderthal stops and looks in her direction.

The bandits reach a clearing. While Widgit tries to find the portal, Kevin asks Alto about the
play. He says he didn’t do it and admits he’s never done one but plans to one day. The portal
opens and they all jump through. Penelope and Kevin are the last ones through and it seems
different. All of them fall slowly through a maelstrom of darkness.
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Mansa Musa

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

4 )
Originally aired: Wednesday August 07, 2024
Writer: Tyrell Williams
Director: Armagan Ballantyne
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Taika Waititi (Supreme Being), Hammed Animashaun (Mansa Musa),
Wayne Colley (Bumpy Johnson), Ben Fransham (John), Mike Minogue
(Headface), Karen O’Leary (Stomachface), Shane Rangi (Demon), Roy
Iro (Jasper), Andrea Solonge (Queen Inari), Mararo Wangai (Farba),
Pax Assadi (Sultan Al-Malik), Jean Bachoura (Sultan’s Advisor),
Justin Amankwah (Caravan Warrior), Ira Munn (Caravan Merchant),
Tawanda Manyimo (Caravan Guard), Sagar Lonkar (Sultan’s Warrior)

Summary: The Bandits scour the desert for a missing member and hatch a plan
to rob history’s richest man. Widgit delves into the mysteries of the

Once everyone has landed (predomi-
nantly on their faces) in the vast expanse
of sand, Judy’s absence is noticed. As
the portal they arrived through via air-
less void is located somewhere above the
surface of the earth, there’s no option to
jump back in it. Also, no one actually
wants to return to the airless void. Pene-
lope is left knowing she’s lost another
bandit while the others mourn Judy’s
gone-ness.

Realizing they’re in a desert, Penelope
directs them to get moving before they die
of exposure. Kevin scrapes a large arrow pointing the way they’re going in case Judy arrives later.
Over the rise, they discover an enormous nomadic camp. This is Northern Africa in 1324 CE.

With Judy M.I.A., Penelope asks Bittelig to chat up the people around them and he learns
this camp is the hajj of Mansa Musa. Kevin fills in the details, reading from his book, describing
Mansa Musa’s pilgrimage to Mecca. The entourage includes 60,000 people carrying a lot of gold.
Mansa Musa’s wealth makes him the richest man in history. This catches Penelope’s attention.

She quickly outlines an Ocean’s Eleven-style heist plan, which features Kevin putting every-
one to sleep with his history explanations while she steals the gold, and Alto DOESN'T play a
camel. Penelope’s backilips are particularly convincing of her stealth skills.

Kevin worries that they’ll never get to save his parents. Penelope responds that they're thieves,
and although they didn’t plan on traveling to 14th-century Africa, they're there now, and they
must steal when there are riches to be stolen.

In his throne tent, Mansa Musa asks Queen Inari if she’s enjoying herself. She demands a
bath. One of the servants hears this, spots Bittelig hiding behind a sprig of straw, and orders
him to help with a mission.

Alto attempts to relieve the treasure tent’s guard. The guard questions him aggressively and
Alto decides to become a camel and run away. Just then, Penelope and Kevin approach. Kevin
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expresses doubt they’ll be able to carry out the heist she’s planned. In defiance, Penelope rolls
and grabs two bags of treasure only to be apprehended by two treasure tent guards who are most
definitely not Alto.

In the desert, Widgit realizes he’s lost. Somewhere else in the desert, Bittelig and Musa’s
servant, Farba, are digging a hole.

The guards bring Penelope, Kevin, and Alto to Mansa Musa. They report that Alto imitated a
camel while Penelope attempted to steal two bags of "emergency fire-lighters", aka camel dung.
Musa rules that they are just people trying to keep warm. He offers them some gold to take with
them. As they leave, Kevin comments on the excellent reputation Mansa Musa has. Musa calls
him back to tell them more of what he knows of Mansa Musa.

They ask Kevin where he’s from and are aghast to learn he’s from England which they know
as a foreign land full of The Plague, unbathed people, and bland food. Musa names Kevin a
friend and invites him to ride with him to Cairo to meet the Sultan. He also requests Kevin tell
his caravan more of his fascinating stories. When Penelope scoffs, she and Alto are taken away.

That evening, Mansa Musa’s griot, the historian Balla Kouyate, introduces Kevin to the lis-
tening crowd. Kevin’s incredibly excited to go first—it’s never happened before. He speaks about
Musa’s wealth, trying to make it rhyme. In the audience, Penelope is glum that she’s not a master
thief after all, sitting next to Alto, who admires Kevin’s showmanship.

Out in the desert, Widgit lies on the sand, also feeling glum that he’s failed as a navigator.
Staring at the night sky, he realizes he has to use the stars to interpret the map. This epiphany
energizes him and he leaps to his feet, suddenly seeing the universe clearly. "The portals are
not inconsistent: They're informed by the universe’s incomparable symmetry. The map holds the
infinite information, unlocked by the infinite nature of the cosmos!"

Back in the tent, Kevin regales them with the tale of Prince Harry and Meghan Markle, which
brings Queen Inari to tears. Musa tells Kevin he is the most interesting person he’s ever met,
and he’s overcome by the compliment.

Widgit wakes up and can’t remember his breakthrough. Elsewhere, Bittelig and Farba finish
digging in the sand and fill the hole with water. Farba tells Bittelig that there’s someone he really
likes but whom he’s never told. Having lost Judy without telling her his feelings for her, Bittelig
advises Farba to tell her how he feels. When Farba shares that he loves Queen Inari, Bittelig feels
more unsure about him declaring his adoration since Farba could be beheaded for it.

The hajj arrives in Cairo. Musa and Balla show Kevin around the Khan el-Khalili Market. Alto
tries to cheer Penelope by inviting her to go stealing, but Penelope’s ambivalent. He reminds her
they don’t know where the others are. Penelope can’t be bothered to look for them.

The Sultan’s men approach Musa and Balla and invite Mansa Musa to meet the Sultan at
the citadel. Musa acts aloof but agrees. Inari is shopping when Farba tells her they’ve prepared
a bath for her in the desert. She thanks him but says she’ll bathe in Cairo with her new soaps.
Farba declares he is in love with her. She acknowledges his statement and deems it sweet. Futile,
but sweet.

Farba breaks down in tears after she moves on. Bittelig holds him and comforts him by
pointing out that at least he wasn’t beheaded. Farba and Bittelig offer the chance to bathe to
anyone interested in riding for two hours by camel. Out in the desert, Widgit comes across the
prepared bathing pool but dismisses it as a mirage and walks away. Further out in the desert,
Fianna finds Kevin’s arrow and follows it.

Alto catches Kevin, Musa, and Balla before they reach the sultan and asks to take Kevin for
a moment. Pulling him over to talk, he notices a crying Bittelig arriving. Alto tells the others that
Penelope’s in crisis. Kevin goes to talk to Penelope. Because she’s sitting on the ground, looking
sad, people keep dropping gold bars for her. She throws them away, frustrated they keep giving
it to her.

Kevin returns to Alto and Bittelig and says he’ll think of a plan to cheer her up after he meets
the Sultan. He accompanies Musa and Balla as they are presented to the Sultan. However, when
Musa is told to kneel before the Sultan, he refuses. He demands the Sultan kneel before him.
The Sultan’s man suggests that the Sultan will kneel after Musa kneels to him.

The Sultan approaches Mansa Musa and states that he won’t kneel first because this is his
palace. Musa states that a mansa is a higher rank than a sultan so the Sultan should kneel
first. The Sultan becomes impatient and threatens violence if things don’t progress soon. The
respective warriors eye each other and prepare their weapons. Kevin looks around nervously.
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Mansa Musa looks at Kevin and acquiesces, stating that he will kneel in honor of the Almighty
simultaneously with the Sultan. The Sultan reluctantly accepts the compromise.

Afterward, Kevin asks how Musa thought of the solution to their stalemate. Musa replies that
there is always common ground. He advises Kevin to be reasonable so he can find it. Kevin ex-
presses a wish that Musa was his dad, and Musa is honored. They hug. Kevin sees Penelope
walking away with her head bowed low and asks Musa if he can pretend that Penelope success-
fully stole from him so she’ll feel like she has a purpose again.

Later, Balla and Farba walk by an alcove where Penelope, Alto, and Bittelig are sitting. They
speak loudly about Musa golden staff, a beautiful item the mansa considers his most precious
belonging. They proclaim that only a master thief could steal it. Widgit wanders in a finds the
other bandits. He tries to tell them about his breakthrough but Penelope is focussed on the new
heist.

Seeing Penelope approaching, Mansa Musa declares the game of chess he’s playing with Kevin
is so engaging that he’d never notice if someone stole his staff. Penelope ignores the staff lying
in plain sight and walks up to Musa and Kevin to say that they are leaving now. She asks Kevin
if he’s coming. Musa invites Kevin to stay with him. Penelope reminds Kevin about his parents.
When Musa hears that Kevin’s on a quest to save his parents, he insists that Kevin continue his
quest. Kevin is torn. He loves how appreciated and welcome they've made him feel. He wonders
if telling them stories is his purpose. Musa tells him that telling stories is what he does. His
purpose is to save his parents. Penelope leaves without trying to steal the staff.

As Kevin and the bandits head to the next portal, he asks her about the staff. She says she
didn’t steal it because she was happy, knowing that he’'d set the whole thing up for her. Having
him as a friend made her feel valued. She also shares that while the Sultan and Mansa Musa
were arguing about kneeling, she stole the Sultan’s rubies. When Kevin saw her walking with her
head low, it was her giggling over the rubies she was holding.

She checks with Bittelig to confirm he put the rubies in his bottomless bag. He points out his
bottomless bag has no bottom so anything he puts in it falls out. Penelope wants to return to
Cairo to get more rubies but Widgit says they have no time as they have a portal to catch. He
states he knows where this one goes. As the portal forms, Kevin opens his book and discovers the
passage about Mansa Musa’s hajj now numbers the people at 60,005. They've changed history.
This makes him hopeful they’ll be able to save his parents by changing history again.

In the Sky Citadel, the Supreme Being is reviewing prayers with Jasper. He’s not keen to
answer any of them. He tries praying to himself to get the map back. Nothing happens. He
shrugs and tells Jasper that it’s a consolation he now knows where the map is headed. Looking
over his shoulder at Judy pruning a plant, he admits he learned it from her when he captured
her.

Back in the desert, Kevin has missed the portal. He jumps up and down on solid sandy
ground, looking around for the others. After a couple more jumps, something happens, and he
yelps as he falls through.
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Ice Age

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

( A
Originally aired: Wednesday August 14, 2024
Writer: Jemaine Clement
Director: Jemaine Clement
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Paul Waggott (Chieftain), Richard Chapman (Howler), Abby Damen
(Faza), Matty Rockel (Grunt), Byron Coll (Loudest Voice), Bryony
Skillington (Kaga), Jesse Griffen (Tooth Tooth), Sophie Hambleton
(Meatgirl)

Sumimary: Saffron saves the day in an icy situation. Penelope faces off with a
tribal chief. Bittelig puts his heart into a rescue mission.

Kevin and the Time Bandits return to the
Ice Age through a portal that suddenly
opens in a rock face and ejects them,
head-first, into the snowy wasteland. In-
terestingly, they are all dressed in their
original traveling clothes instead of the
desert gear from their previous adven-
ture.

Noting their cold, inhospitable circum-
stances, Penelope asks Kevin if he’s sure
he wants to rescue his parents. Kevin as-
sures her he does, explaining that his
parents weren't always the greatest but,
on occasion, they were wonderful. As he’s talking, the others see a saber-toothed cat stalking a
small woolly rhinoceros nearby.

Bittelig is quite upset by the idea of the cat killing the rhino. Penelope cautions them all to
stay quiet so the cat doesn’t notice them. Instead, Bittelig yells at the cat to draw its attention
away from the rhino. As the cat stalks toward them, Penelope directs them to throw all their
stolen treasures at it. No one hits it with their throws and they run out of projectiles quickly.
Alto finds a roll of breath mints. Penelope takes a shot and hits the cat with the breath mints. Of
course, this just annoys it and it comes closer, growling.

Alto rallies the group, convinced they can scare the cat away by looking like a bigger predator
and being loud. Together, they shout, "AWAY!" until the cat looks scared and runs. However, it
turns out it ran because their shouting caused an avalanche. They try to run from the avalanche
too but end up buried in snow.

Kevin wakes up when a group of Neanderthals digs him out. They are excited he is alive and
call to someone nearby. Kevin gets up and sees a woolly mammoth approaching. A figure pokes
its head up from on top of the mammoth and shouts his name. It's Saffron, her hair wild and
matted, totally dressed in furs.

When she identifies him, the Neanderthals around him repeat his name. Kevin’'s stunned.
When he regains his speech, he asks what she’s doing riding a mammoth since paleontologists
had found no evidence that people rode them in the Ice Age. Saffron is unimpressed by what
paleontologists think.

The Neanderthals help Penelope and the others out of the snow. Penelope tells Kevin they've
found his family, despite his protests that they aren’t related. He admits the one on the mammoth
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is his sister. When Widgit calls her annoying, she takes offense and the Neanderthals jump to
her side, echoing her phrasing. Kevin faints.

Kevin wakes up on the mammoth, riding behind Saffron. She introduces him to Faza and
Howler her cave parents who found and took care of her. Walking near them are Tooth Tooth and
Meatgirl. Kevin introduces the Time Bandits. He asks how she got to the Ice Age. She describes
falling through the portal in his room and asking at each place she arrived if anyone had seen
him.

Bittelig raises an alarm when he finds the woolly rhino lying on the ground with a broken leg.
He wants to help it. Saffron calls the rhino a unicorn. Kevin corrects her in that the rhino has
two horns. Frustrated, she renames it a "Twonicorn." He still disagrees and they squabble over
it.

Arriving at the Neanderthal settlement, she tells him to be normal. They attract a lot of at-
tention as they ride in. Saffron greets everyone by name and dismounts skillfully. Kevin follows,
landing on his face again. Miraculously, his glasses are fine.

As they move through the settlement, Saffron checks in on how well Loudest Voice is learning
to count and chats with Grunt, introducing him to Kevin. They have a grunt exchange before
Grunt moves on. Kevin asks Saffron how she’s able to communicate with the Neanderthals and
when she learned to ride mammoths and throw spears. He’s also curious why all the Nean-
derthals talk like her. She reveals that she’s been living with them for nearly three years. While
showing him the rock she marked to keep track of the days, she realizes that she’s now older
than him.

Kevin tries to tell her about their parents’ coal-ness but she insists on celebrating her new
status as oldest sibling. Noting that he’d missed two of her birthdays, Kevin lets her get it out of
her system.

Meanwhile, the Time Bandits pull the injured woolly rhino into the settlement on a sled.
Bittelig plans to nurse it to health which is at odds with the Neanderthals’ instinct to eat it.
Widgit and Penelope check in on Kevin and Saffron which sets Saff off again. Penelope asks
Kevin if they’ll be leaving Saff with the Neanderthals.

Saffron brings Kevin and the Time Bandits to the Neanderthal Chief. Kevin learns that the
entire clan knows him as Saffron’s boring brother, based on what she’s told them. Penelope
offers to take Saffron with them but the Chief states that Saff belongs with them now. She’s a
total legend having taught them banter, invented the chair, and instilled the spirit of Y.O.L.O. in
them.

The Chief focuses on Penelope and starts walking towards her, grunting and beating his chest.
Trying to respond in kind, she half-heartedly beats her chest and vocalizes a grunt. The Chief
takes that as a challenge and accepts it. Saffron explains that he sees Penelope as a threat
because she’s a leader like him. Penelope argues that she’s not the leader because the Time
Bandits vote, but using Saff-style debate phrases, the Chief insists she is and has to stand by
her challenge.

Outside, Bittelig prepares to set the leg of the rhino, now named Twonicorn. Having no training
or the proper supplies, Bittelig is understandably nervous and takes any opportunity to stall. The
Neanderthals nearby continue to advocate for eating Twonicorn.

Penelope asks Saffron what the Chief meant by a challenge. Saffron says it’s because they're
taking her away. It'll probably be a physical challenge like being thrown in a freezing cold lake
or being beaten with clubs. Penelope suggests they leave but Widgit and Penelope point out they
won't last a night out in the cold. Some of the Neanderthals bring furs to keep the Time Bandits
warm.

Bittelig arrives too late for a full-sized fur and Saffron hands him the skin of an Ice Age squir-
rel. He protests that he was busy caring for Twonicorn. Kevin reminds them it isn’t a unicorn.
Saffron bickers with him again. Howler suggests throwing Kevin off a cliff.

That night, Bittelig tells Twonicorn they're going to save him. After Susan and Judy, he
couldn’t bear to lose Twonicorn as well. Sitting around the fire that night, Kevin tries to tell
Saffron about their parents but the Chief arrives. He stares intently at Penelope and when she
smiles back, he accuses her of mugging him off.

Kevin asks Saffron if they can talk somewhere private. Sitting down together, he tells her it’s
about their parents. She’s talking about how much she misses them when he pulls out the lumps
of coal. He tells her this is their parents after a run-in with a demon. Explaining about the map,
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he shares that the plan is to travel to a time before the demon encounter and stop the coal-ing
from happening.

Saffron asks if the demon has glowing eyes and hectic hair. Kevin confirms the description
and Saffron swears she’d take Fianna down if they met again. Kevin confesses that he feels like
giving up. Saffron tells him that she did give up on getting home because she had to concentrate
on surviving. But now that they’ve found each other, they can work together to save their parents.
She points out how the Time Bandits never give up and neither can they.

Just then, Bittelig gives up on trying to save Twonicorn, Alto gives up on teaching the Nean-
derthals theater, and Penelope gives up on making peace with the Chief. The Chief presents a
choice of challenges. Either she fights Kaga or she must do the walk of fear, a solitary walk to a
nearby rock in the dark. Penelope picks the walk.

In a shelter, Widgit and Bittelig try to sleep but they’re too cold. Widgit suggests skinning
Twonicorn for its woolly coat. Bittelig refuses. Outside, Penelope’s making the walk of fear with
only a small torch, talking herself up. Widgit continues to try to convince Bittelig to kill Twoni-
corn, pointing out that Alto’s nearly frozen to death. Bittelig peeks out at the woolly rhino again.

Penelope reaches the rock and is about to touch it when she sees two glowing eyes in the
shadows behind the rock. Calling them the eyes of death, she believes it’s the saber-toothed cat
she hit with the breath mints earlier. Petrified, she apologizes for throwing the breath mints at it.
Quickly touching the rock, she turns around and flees, muttering, "The eyes of death," over and
over as she returns to the settlement. Behind her, a Scrat-like creature with bright eyes emerges
from the shadows and runs off.

As Penelope approaches the settlement, the Ice Age Fianna rock awakens. At the settlement,
Bittelig approaches Twonicorn with a spear. He crosses paths with Penelope who only says, "The
eyes of death,” to him. Bittelig raises the spear but when dawn breaks, he’s curled up with
Twonicorn, sleeping. Widgit wakes him asking, "You couldn’t do it, could you?" Bittelig admits
he couldn’t.

Saffron summons everyone to get ready to leave. She insists on going first because she’s older.
Kevin points out he was still born first. They quarrel about this. Penelope breaks in to say she’s
going in front. When Saffron tells her the big cats go after the front or back of a group, she
changes her mind to the middle.

The Chief comes to see them off, saying Penelope’s earned his respect by completing the walk
of fear. He offers to co-lead with her if she’s willing to be his woman. Penelope states she has a
fiancé. Kevin and Saffron explain to the Neanderthals they’re going to save their dead parents and
make them alive again. This goes against the principles of Y.O.L.O. and throws the Neanderthals
into an existential crisis. Saffron admits maybe Y.O.L.T. which they consider and accept.

Bittelig leaves instructions not to eat Twonicorn as he will return to heal him. As the Chief
continues to propose to Penelope, they head for the next portal, Bittelig and Saffron asking when
they can come back. Penelope wonders why they’d ever want to.
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Home Again

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

e )
Originally aired: Wednesday August 14, 2024
Writer: Jemaine Clement
Director: Yana Gorskaya
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Jemaine Clement (Pure Evil), James Dryden (Mr. Haddock), Felicity
Ward (Mrs. Haddock), Jonny Brugh (Damon), Ben Fransham (John),
Mike Minogue (Headface), Karen O’Leary (Stomachface), Shane Rangi
(Demon), Marley Mackrill (Mikey), Coco White (Lisa), Ava Diakhaby
(Samantha Field), David Woods (Chris Wilcock), Natalie Medlock (Goth
Suzie), Robert Hartley (Goth Andrew), Jackson Tozer (Goth Robert),
Jimeoin (Sidney), Irene Skillington (Elsie), Alan B. McElroy (Aggro
Albert), Paul Waggott (Chieftain), Richard Chapman (Howler), Abby
Damen (Faza), Matty Rockel (Grunt), Byron Coll (Loudest Voice), Bry-
ony SkKillington (Kaga), Jesse Griffen (Tooth Tooth), Sophie Hambleton

(Meatgirl)
Summary: Kevin and Saffron return to Bingley. . . but it’s 1996 and their parents
are children. Fianna continues her chase and crashes a goth party.
\ & J

Kevin, Saffron, and the Time Bandits fol-
low Widgit’s directions to the portal. As
they wait for the portal to manifest, Pene-
lope tells Kevin and Saffron that they
mustn’t meet their past selves because it
wreaks havoc with one’s self-image.
Widgit opens a flap and Saffron spots
the portal. They only have 30 minutes
to warn their parents because Widgiet's
sending them back to the night they met
Kevin. The other Time Bandits are hor-
rified because the Supreme Being and
Fianna were both at Kevin’s house that

night.

Saffron refuses to be deterred and runs for the portal. Kevin follows, reminding the bandits
that they changed the recorded history in his book when they encountered Mansa Musa so he
knows there’s a chance they can change his parents’ fate.

Saffron and Kevin emerge from the portal through a refrigerator in a kitchen full of goths.
Kevin asks a party attendee if they’re in Bingley. She says it is but doesn’t recognize the name
of their street. Saffron says the Neanderthals always look for a central landmark to orient them-
selves when they’re lost. Kevin asks for directions to the shopping center.

Back in the Ice Age, the Time Bandits argue over going through the portal to help the kids.
Suddenly a second portal opens and through it, they can see Penelope, Alto, and Widgit. Portal
Penelope’s yelling at them to go after the kids. Bittelig wants to know where he is. Portal Alto tells
Ice Age Alto he’s incredibly brave and makes a significant contribution. Portal Widgit tells Ice Age
Widgit that his understanding of the map is greater than he realizes. "Time folds," he says. Ice
Age Widgit doesn’t understand.
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Portal Penelope gets stern and insists they go immediately. The Ice Age Time Bandits get
going. The Portal Time Bandits scream in terror as they close their portal.

At the Bingley Shopping Center, Saffron notices that it looks rundown and everyone is dressed
in retro clothes. Kevin deduces they are in 1996, not 2024.

Saffron realizes their parents are alive, just young. They can find them. Kevin worries they’ll
do something that stops them from being born. Saffron is desperate to hug her mother and
decides to go to see her. She sends Kevin to find their dad.

Back at the goth party, Penelope, Alto, Widgit, and Bittelig emerge from the fridge. As they try
to get out of the house, they think Fianna’s there only to discover it’s a party attendee with very
similar hair.

Kevin approaches his grandparents’ house and mistakes his 1996 grandfather for his dad. His
1996 dad is sitting on the hood of the family car, playing on his Game Boy. He introduces himself
as Mikey Haddock and Kevin introduces himself as Kevin Haddaway. Mikey jokes, "Haddaway? I
had a way with your mum." Kevin can only agree.

As they connect over the Game Boy, a ginger cat watches them from the sidewalk. Through
its eyes, Pure Evil spots Kevin and believes he has the map. He orders someone to wake Fianna.
A black cat at the goth party heads out back to the 1996 Fianna rock and Pure Evil calls to her
through the cat.

The Time Bandits wander the party. Penelope is preoccupied by how bossy her future self
seemed. After establishing that she isn’t bossy, she orders Alto to blend in and figure out which
people at the party are Kevin’s parents.

Alto finds the woman who lives in the house and asks if Kevin and Saffron ("Savlon") are her
kids. She’s grossed out by the idea but mentions there were kids playing in the fridge earlier.
Out in the yard, 1996 Fianna bursts out of her rock. The woman tells Alto the kids went to the
shopping center.

As Alto heads to find the others, Fianna comes in the back door. The goth with similar hair
asks her to dance. She growls and glows her eyes at him before heading for the front door. The
door doesn’t open easily so she blasts a hole through it and leaves.

Saffron approaches her mother’s childhood home and knocks on the door. Her grandmother
answers and Saffron makes up a story about moving into the area and trying to meet people. A
little girl runs up and hugs Saffron’s grandmother and Saffron realizes it’s her mum, Lisa, aged
six. Her grandmother invites her in.

In the Ice Age, Ice Age Fianna finds a torch the Time Bandits dropped and sniffs it. A portal
opens behind her and she heads through.

The goths are examining the blasted door. The Time Bandits overhear the description of the
person that caused the damage and realize Fianna’s here now. They rush out to find the kids
before Fianna finds them.

In the kitchen, Ice Age Fianna emerges from the fridge. The goth with similar hair asks her to
dance again. Ice Age Fianna blasts him across the room. Sniffing the air, she heads for the hole
in the front door.

At her grandmother’s house, Saffron cleans her face and tidies her hair. Her grandmother and
the child’s mum watch from the bathroom doorway. She tells them she hasn’t seen her reflection
in years and has been brushing her teeth with sticks. Her grandmother suggests Saffron and
Lisa play for a bit while she makes a phone call.

At the other house, Kevin and Mikey listen and sing along to Jamiroquai’s "Virtual Insanity” on
the radio and practice the dance moves. When Kevin offers some trivia about the concept of flying
cars, Mikey is impressed, which delights Kevin. Mikey’s dad comes out, yelling that the music is
too loud. Kevin rushes to shut off the radio, inadvertently blurting out, "Sorry, Granddad." This
sets his future grandfather off. He takes Mikey’s Game Boy away as punishment.

Kevin repeatedly apologizes, unable to stop adding "Granddad" each time, winding his grand-
father up further. He storms into the house and slams the door. Mikey is really impressed now
with Kevin’s cheekiness. He tells him he’s really cool, making Kevin euphorically happy.

1996 Fianna stomps through the streets of Bingley, nearly meeting up with Ice Age Fianna as
she heads in the other direction. Ice Age Fianna notices something odd in the air.

Left alone with Lisa, Saffron suggests they play "Babies and Mummies" with Lisa being the
mum. Saffron takes the opportunity to apologize to Lisa for all the things she did when her mum
was alive.
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At the shopping center, the Time Bandits split up to look for Kevin. Bittelig confides in Pene-
lope that he can’t die yet because he hasn’'t done anything important with his life. Penelope
advises him not to be distracted by his foreknowledge. She wants him to stay sharp because she
can’t afford to lose him.

She sends him out to find the kids. Meanwhile, out in the plaza, Alto makes friends with a
couple of chatty pensioners, oblivious to 1996 Fianna stalking past in the background.

Kevin and Mikey are playing catch in the yard. Kevin cherishes the experience of sharing
time with his dad, saying it's a great moment. When picking up the ball, he sees 1996 Fianna
approaching. He rushes back to Mikey and thanks him effusively for the day.

Mikey sees Fianna and asks who she is. Kevin urges him to go inside because she’s a demon.
Mikey scoffs but when Fianna burns up the laundry on the line with her flame gaze, he runs for
the house. Kevin runs off, telling Mikey to "Remember her!" and "Be afraid!" as warnings for the
future.

Alto’s learning all the local gossip when he spots Ice Age Fianna through the crowd at the
shopping center. Excusing himself from his elderly companions, Alto scurries to a toy store and
pushes a wheelie bin of rubber balls across the plaza to distract Fianna. She follows it and comes
face-to-face with Bittelig.

Saffron is still apologizing to Lisa when some people knock on the door. Her grandmother has
called Social Services to take Saffron into care. Saffron overhears their conversation when she
goes to the window. Looking to the driveway, she sees Kevin waving. When the adults come to
see her, she takes Lisa and runs.

Kevin tries to dissuade her from kidnapping their mother. Their grandmother and Social Ser-
vices people come and ask Saffron to let Lisa go. Saffron asks Lisa for a final hug and Lisa agrees.
They let Lisa go back to her mother and take off only to run into 1996 Fianna. Kevin runs but
Saffron decides to trash-talk Fianna a bit first. Kevin pulls her away before Fianna blasts the
swingset.

In the shopping center, Bittelig dodges Ice Age Fianna’s blasts while the shoppers scream and
run. At the other end of the plaza, Alto sees Kevin and Saffron running back, pursued by 1996
Fianna. He gets up and intercepts Fianna, giving the kids time to run to the music shop and
hide.

Widgit realizes there are two Fiannas. Bittelig insists they all escape out the back door while
he fights them. He believes this is the important thing he’s meant to do. The Fiannas come face-
to-face with Bittelig in the middle. They begin talking to each other, but Bittelig interrupts, and
they start punching him.

As they run through the alley, Saffron asks if they can give the map to Fianna to save Bittelig.
The others tell her they can’t let Pure Evil have the map. They return to the goth party house.
Standing in the kitchen, Widgit finally realizes what his future self meant. He opens the folds in
the map to open the portal back in time so they can warn themselves in the Ice Age.

After they have the exact same interaction as before, screaming because they see the goth
with Fianna hair and shutting the portal door, Bittelig walks in with a bag of medical supplies
and a book on how to triage Twonicorn. He tells them that he slipped away when the Fiannas
started arguing with each other.

The Fiannas walk in together, discussing temporal dissonance. Alto spots them as he’s closing
the fridge and screams Fianna’s name. The huntress demons walk over but the fridge is just a
fridge now.

Back in the Ice Age at the Neanderthal camp, Bittelig gets to work setting Twonicorn’s leg.
Kevin’s glum because he’s failed to save his parents again. Penelope tries to comfort him. She
and the other Time Bandits tell him about trying to use the map to save their friend Susan. No
matter how many times they tried, they always arrived after she fell off the cliff and the giant
boulder fell on her.

Kevin opens his fanny pack and discovers the coal lumps are gone. As they all consider
whether they managed to alter history, a roar startles them. The saber-toothed cat leaps at
them, then freezes in mid-air and they hear Pure Evil's voice. He demands they give him the map
in exchange for Kevin and Saffron’s parents.

Their dad and mum are shackled to Pure Evil's wall. They explain that Mike’s recurring night-
mare of Fianna prepared him to surrender the moment he saw her again while Lisa’s childhood

33



Time Bandits Episode Guide

near kidnapping experience had motivated her to get training in hostage situations. Fianna had
no reason to coal them.

Pure Evil demands they bring the map to the Fortress of Eternal Darkness. The call ends and
the saber-toothed cat unfreezes and runs away. The bandits explain the fortress is in the time of
legends.

The bandits prepare to leave the camp. They gather around Widgit and the map and discover
that the missing corner is exactly where they need to go. Kevin states determinedly that they
need to find that corner and marches off. Saffron follows and orders the rest of them to come,
too.
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Pell-Mell

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

4 N\
Originally aired: Wednesday August 21, 2024
Writer: Sam Bain
Director: lain Morris
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Taika Waititi (Supreme Being), Ghenoa Gela (Susan), Maaka Po-
hatu (Gavin), Hammed Animashaun (Mansa Musa), Wayne Colley
(Bumpy Johnson), Francesca Mills (Detective Katherine), Imaan Had-
chiti (Sergeant Lewis), Dane Noonan (The Cherub), Ruben Francis
(Bobby), Sarah Darkin (Conspirator), Josh Thomson (Hen The Gi-
ant), Lawrence Leung (Emperor Qin Shi Huang), Shaun Micallef (Caf-
fan Carpet Dave), Zoe Ventoura (Cassandra), George Houvardas (Ajax
the Lesser), Michael Valamios (Odysseus), Nikita Chronis (Xanthus),
George Dimarelos (Ophelestes), Xavier Michelides (Thoas), Michael
Nikou (Diomedes), Justin Amankwah (Ernie Fingers), Ira Munn (Larry
Always Late), Kevin Copeland (Heavy), James Gaylyn (Babyface), Ja-
son Galeon (Emperor’s Bodyguard)

Summary: The gang sets out to find the missing piece of the Map. Kevin comes
face-to-face with the Supreme Being, who offers a tempting deal.

In the Sky Citadel, Sergeant Lewis intro-
duces Detective Katherine to The Cherub
and the other conspirators. She acknowl-
edges the Supreme Being wants the map
for reasons she doesn’t agree with. She
asks The Cherub who his gang is. He
states they are the most feared group of
bandits in the entire space-time contin-
uum. Once Katherine agrees to join them,
they share their plan to steal the map the
Time Bandits have already stolen. Unlike
the Time Bandits, The Cherub’s bandits
know how powerful the map is. Once they

have it, they will change things for the better.

Kevin, Saffron, and the other Time Bandits fall from a great height, landing on their faces as
they arrive outside Troy. Kevin insists they go in and look for Cassandra. He believes she will
know where the missing corner of the map is. They find the city in chaos as the Greeks sack it.
Kevin finds out from some of the fighters that Cassandra’s been thrown in jail. The Greek general
has his men take them to the jail for a visit, but they end up locked in a cell instead.

Kevin hears Cassandra’s voice in an adjoining cell. He asks her if she knows where the map
piece showing how to get to the Time of Legends is. She asks the bandits where they saw it last.
The bandits recall the last time they saw it was the day Susan died. Kevin suggests they must
return to the time and place where the boulder crushed her. They can even try to save her. Again.
Cassandra volunteers that they won’t save their friend, but they don’t believe her.

Bittelig wrests the cell door off, and they escape with Cassandra. Crouched by a wall, Penelope
asks Cassandra if she’ll find her fiancé, Gavin. Cassandra confirms that she’ll be reunited with
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Gavin if she goes on this quest. She will find him living on the head of a man. Widgit asks if he’ll
ever get over his breakup. Cassandra says he won'’t. Bittelig asks if he’ll be lonely. Cassandra
admits he will be. Saff asks if Kevin will ever stop being a nerd. No. Kevin asks if they defeat Pure
Evil.

Cassandra runs off, shouting encouragement at Kevin to save the universe. Penelope directs
everyone to scurry to the next portal. As they walk along a rocky beach, looking for the portal, a
large disturbance builds in the water off-shore. The Supreme Being rises out of the ocean in the
form of Poseidon and demands the map. While everyone else runs away, Kevin stays and asks
the Supreme Being if he will help them save his parents.

Penelope tells Kevin he can’t reason with the Supreme Being. He looks up just as Poseidon’s
giant hand grabs him. Next thing he knows, he’s been transported to a white void. The Supreme
Being appears dressed in his Sky Citadel robes and offers to change the space into anything
Kevin would like. But not right away because it takes time, and there are HR protocols that have
to be followed.

He proposes that, in the meantime, they agree that Kevin will help get him the map. In return,
he’ll return his parents to him with upgrades if he’'d like. He offers to make Mansa Musa his
father and to make Kevin incredibly popular with his classmates. Dressed in Penelope’s clothes,
he reminds Kevin how important the map is to him and leaves without noticing that Kevin never
agrees to be his spy.

Kevin is suddenly back with the bandits. They are arguing about why everything always goes
wrong for them. Widgit blames Penelope’s poor leadership qualities. Penelope blames Widgit's
poor map-reading skills. They all begin pointing fingers. Widgit suggests there’s a spy among
them. Penelope guesses it's Alto. Widgit reveals that Penelope has an ulterior motive for their
portal travels. Saffron interrupts and tells them to focus on the mission. Kevin reminds them
they need to go back to where Susan died.

Widgit returns them to that time and place using a terrifying express route that nearly propels
them over a cliff. Once they arrive, Alto returns to the topic of Pnelope having an ulterior motive.
Widgit tells them she asked him to choose destinations where she might find Gavin. Alto and
Bittelig feel betrayed. Penelope tries to excuse her lies, then redirects their attention to their past
selves being captured by Maori. They see Judy and try to warn her about the void, but to no
avail.

Kevin realizes they’re standing on the cliff that Susan fell off of. The others point out the
boulder that squashed her and her yellow boots sticking out, all that they have to remember her
by. As they observe a moment of silence, Saffron notices a woman scurrying away with no shoes
on. She asks if that’s Susan. The Time Bandits recognize her and start calling her name, relieved
she’s alive. Susan turns around, looks directly at them, and then continues to run away.

The Time Bandits follow, still calling her name. Susan leaps through a portal Widgit didn’t
know about. Kevin deduces that she has the missing piece of the map. Saffron figures Susan
faked her death to steal it. Penelope refuses to believe it. They follow her through the portal and
emerge in the Qin Dynasty, 220 BCE.

They chase her through the woods but are stopped by Qin Shi Huang, the lord who began
the Great Wall of China and became the country’s first emperor. Susan escapes through another
portal while the Time Bandits try to convince soon-to-be Emperor Qin that they aren’t assassins.

Once permitted to pass, they follow Susan through the portal to 14th-century Caffa, where
the Mongol Horde is attacking the city with Plague-infested corpses in the first recorded act
of biological warfare. They momentarily lose Susan in the chaos and are waylaid by a local
shopkeeper, who explains they have nothing to fear from the bubonic plague as long as they are
young and bathe in urine.

Spotting Susan through the crowd, they follow through the winding town alleys until they
catch up to her at a dead end. They cheerfully greet her, only to have her vent her frustration
at them. She tells them she quit the Time Bandits, opens a portal in the wall, and tells them to
leave her alone before stepping through.

The Time Bandits are stunned. Alto prepares to deliver an emotional speech and clears his
throat for effect. The shopkeeper returns with a crowd and asks why Alto is coughing. He explains
he’s just clearing his throat and demonstrates a couple more times. This upsets the crowd. Kevin
informs Alto that outsiders suspected of bringing in the Plague were killed. The crowd advances
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on them with pitchforks until they've backed into the wall. Suddenly, the portal reopens, and
Susan tells them to come on.

The Time Bandits manifest on a rocky beach outside a large hut with a clothesline. The
homestead is on a small island. Penelope knocks on the door, and Gavin comes out. Penelope’s
nearly speechless with surprise. She steps forward to embrace Gavin but stops when Susan
comes out of the hut behind Gavin. Susan links arms with Gavin. Gavin and Susan tell Penelope
they love each other. Penelope protests that she’s been traveling through time to show him what
she could do and be.

Gavin explains they didn’t know how to tell her, so they ran away. Penelope tells him about
risking her life to gather the world’s greatest treasures for him. She pulls out what she’s collected
and offers it all to him. He tells her he never wanted treasure. He only wanted her time, and she
spent it on other things.

Penelope demands an explanation from Susan, who tells her she faked her death and stole
the piece of the map so they couldn’t find her. The others ask why she’d want to leave their life
of banditry. She points out they never really stole anything of worth and haven’t done anything
they set out to do, calling them hapless history tourists.

The Time Bandits all sit down, defeated by the truth of Susan’s words. Penelope admits she’s
right. Widgit suggests that everyone take a bit of the map and go off somewhere where they’ll
never see the others again.

Kevin steps forward and puts a hand on Penelope’s shoulder. He tells her that he needs her,
even if Gavin doesn’t. Penelope smiles sadly at Kevin. She recalls all the time Kevin’s spent with
them and all their adventures together. She thanks Kevin and stands up to rally the bandits to
save Kevin and Saffron’s parents, vowing to take them just outside the Fortress of Darkness.

Bittelig, Alto, and Widgit all stand up, swearing their support for taking the kids to the
Fortress, but without going inside because it’s too scary. Penelope turns to Susan and demands
the piece of the map she stole so they can go to the Time of Legends. Susan and Gavin point out
they don’t need the map to go there because they’re already in the Time of Legends.

As the bandits process this knowledge, the island begins to shake. It rises into the air. Kevin
runs to the edge for a better look. The entire island sits atop a giant’s head. Susan says his name
is Hen. Penelope remembers Cassandra’s prophecy.
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Fortress of Darkness

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

( \
Originally aired: Wednesday August 21, 2024
Writer: lain Morris
Director: Tim van Dammen
Show Stars: Lisa Kudrow (Penelope), Kal-El Tuck (Kevin), Tadhg Murphy (Alto),

Roger Jean Nsengiyumva (Widgit), Rune Temte (Bittelig), Charlyne Yi
(Judy), Rachel House (Fianna), Kiera Thompson (Saffron)

Guest Stars: Jemaine Clement (Pure Evil), Taika Waititi (Supreme Being), James
Dryden (Mr. Haddock), Felicity Ward (Mrs. Haddock), Ghenoa Gela
(Susan), Wayne Colley (Bumpy Johnson), Mark Gatiss (Earl of Sand-
wich), Hammed Animashaun (Mansa Musa), Jonny Brugh (Damon),
Ben Fransham (John), Mike Minogue (Headface), Karen O’Leary (Stom-
achface), Shane Rangi (Demon), Francesca Mills (Detective Katherine),
Imaan Hadchiti (Sergeant Lewis), Dane Noonan (The Cherub), Ruben
Francis (Bobby), Sarah Darkin (Conspirator), Maaka Pohatu (Gavin),
Elijah Smyth-Ruru (Gavin Junior), Josh Thomson (Hen The Giant),
Jen Van Epps (Emmie), Jerome Chandrahasen (Colonel), Saraid de
Silva (Vice Admiral), Jeff Szusterman (Miltary Commander), Katlyn
Wong (Madame Chung), Ross Noble (Foreman), Shaun Micallef (Mayor
Landesman), Lawrence Leung (Emperor Qin Shi Luang), Zoe Ventoura
(Cassandra), Tapiwa Soropa (Large Doorman)

Summary: Despite impossible odds, Kevin, Saffron, and the Bandits venture into
the Fortress of Darkness to save Kevin’s parents.

Bittelig introduces himself to Hen, sym-
pathizing with the giant about the trials
of being tall. Kevin also pops his head
over the edge of the island and introduces
himself. He asks Hen if he’ll help them
save his parents. Hen agrees to help and
then regrets it when he finds out he has
to take them to the Fortress of Darkness.

Hen begins walking across the ocean
to the Fortress of Darkness. Inside Gavin
and Susan’s hut, Penelope asks Kevin
about his plan. Kevin says he plans on
asking Pure Evil to release his parents.
Penelope doesn’t think this will work. Bittelig and Widgit agree. Saffron insists she has a better
plan and continues drawing pictures with the supplies in her lunch box.

Susan comes in and announces they’ve arrived. Outside, Penelope bids Gavin an emotional
farewell. Hen places the whole group on an icy piece of land and leaves. The Time Bandits take
the kids to the Fortress but have no idea how they’ll get inside. They scatter when they hear
someone coming.

Pure Evil's regenerating minion, John, emerges from the fortress. Spying the badly hidden
bandits, he announces that he’s revealed the secret entrance. Hoping (out loud) that no one
follows him in, he goes back in.

The bandits wish the kids the best of luck, sticking with their promise to bring them to the
fortress’s gates but not enter it themselves. Kevin asks them for the map. Widgit reluctantly gives
it to him on Penelope’s direction. The kids step into the fortress and drop through the floor.
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Kevin wakes up in his pajamas in his bed but without his translation cap. His mum and dad
come in to check on him, saying they heard banging. Kevin jumped out of bed to hug them tight.
His dad says he must've had a bad nightmare. Kevin insists he wasn’t asleep and starts pushing
the wall to show them how his room in a time egress but it doesn’t budge.

Looking around his room, Kevin sees reminders of his many adventures. His parents look at
him, concerned, assuring him it was a bad dream. He tries to explain that it wasn’t bad and that
he had wonderful experiences throughout history and the world. His dad asks how he navigated
through all the magical worlds he visited. His mum asks if he has an atlas or a chart. They point
out there’s something new on his bed. Kevin reaches over and picks up the map. His mom says
it’s probably giving him bad dreams and tells him to give it to her.

Kevin jumps to his feet and moves to the other side of the bed. Clutching the map, he asks
how Saffron’s doing. His dad assures him he doesn’t need to be jealous of his older sister. Kevin
challenges them on that, pointing out that his real parents would know he was born before
Saffron. Grabbing his yellow lunch box, he slides the map inside and puts on his translation
cap.

His parents begin to tremble and then transform into John and Damon. They disappear,
laughing, in a spurt of flame. The walls of Kevin’s room fall away, revealing Pure Evil’s throne
room. Kevin teeters at the edge of the floor. Saffron grabs him and pulls him to safer ground.
Pure Evil greets them from his throne.

Their parents are shackled next to the throne. They greet the kids. Kevin asks if they've
suffered as Pure Evil’'s prisoners. They're both quite happy with their stay in the fortress. Mike
says he’s helped improve Pure Evil’s Internet connectivity. Lisa points out some of the decor
updates she’s made.

Their parents encourage Kevin to give Pure Evil the map. Kevin refuses. Pure Evil grows
angry, promising to make things very unpleasant for Kevin and Saffron. Suddenly, Penelope and
the Time Bandits arrive, stating they won’t stand for that. Kevin and Saffron are excited the
others have come to save them. Penelope admits that they were captured as well.

Fianna enters, holding a red-hot poker on the prisoners, and claims the capture. Pure Evil
asks how she tracked them down. She says they were just outside about to come in on their own.
Pure Evil says there’s no reward for bringing them in when they were coming in anyway.

Pure Evil gets back to telling Kevin to give him the map. The Haddock parents tell Pure Evil
to just take it since he’s already asked politely. Turns out he can’t. The map has to be given.

Rather than torturing them for the map, he shows them the life they could have in exchange
for the map. Alto sees a world where he is performing on stage to universal adulation. On the
balcony, Emmie cheers.

Widgit’s vision is one where he is the smartest man in the world, capable of opening any
jar. Bittelig’s fantasy is a direct reflection of him and the Time Bandits in that moment. Despite
Penelope asking some very sharp questions about the feasibility of everyone being in Bittelig’'s
fantasy at the same time as being in their own, Pure Evil hits her with a vision of sitting down to
a meal with Gavin and their two children.

Penelope smiles and Pure Evil interprets that as her liking what she sees. She corrects his
thinking, explaining that the vision proves he’s not omniscient after all. The vision isn’t what she
wants because Gavin doesn’t love her, and she’d hate to watch him forced to love her.

Pure Evil shrugs off her critique and approaches Kevin with his final pitch. He offers to give
Kevin his life back with a few tweaks. Kevin consults with Saffron and they both reject the offer.
Pure Evil points out that if they don’t give it to him, it may end up with the Supreme Being, who
plans to erase all human history.

The bandits realize the void that took Judy is a part that the Supreme Being already deleted.
Pure Evil reasons that he’d never destroy the world. He just wants to make it miserable. So, to get
the map, he’ll torture Kevin by torturing the people Kevin loves most. His parents are concerned
until it’s clear that Pure Evil means the Time Bandits.

Pure Evil's torture of the Time Bandits is interrupted when the Supreme Being makes a
splashy entrance, crashing into the throne room pillars as a comet and emerging from a cloud of
dust and smoke. He zaps lightning around while a chorus of electric guitars plays, making Pure
Evil gag.

Penelope apologizes for stealing the map. The Supreme Being strides in, grunting at her, and
insults Pure Evil. He addresses Kevin, asking for the map. Kevin sighs and pulls the yellow lunch
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box out of his backpack. Looking at Pure Evil, Kevin demands he calls Fianna off. Pure Evil does
so immediately. Fianna leaves after telling Widgit to call her.

Next, Kevin tells Pure Evil to release his parents and send them back to their own time. His
parents protest that they're quite happy where they are. Saffron gives them a dressing down for
being ungrateful for all Kevin’s done to rescue them. Shocked at her scolding, they settle down.
Kevin repeats his demand. Pure Evil’s fine with that since he only kidnapped them to lure Kevin
to the fortress.

Mike reminds Pure Evil that he still has to set up his printer. Pure Evil considers that a
moment but decides the map is more important. He sends the parents back and, when Saffron
demands proof, shows them Mike and Lisa sitting on the couch watching TV while scrolling their
phones, talking about a weird dream they had.

The Supreme Being interjects and tries to cajole Kevin into giving him the map. Kevin tells
him that resetting the universe isn’'t a good idea. The Supreme Being argues that he’s always
right, so Kevin shouldn’t think about it. Kevin stands firm.

Penelope speaks up, telling Kevin not to listen to the Supreme Being because the Supreme
Being has to control everything and micromanage all creation. She tells the Supreme Being that
creation should be messy and uncontrollable. It might start out as one thing but then it becomes
something else. The Supreme Being tells her she’s wrong and the world is imperfect, which is
why he intends to fix it.

Pure Evil promises to keep human history if Kevin gives him the map. Of course, he’ll make
it miserable but at least it’ll still be there. Kevin is conflicted. He holds the yellow lunch box and
looks at Saffron and the bandits. He makes his decision and hands the lunch box to Pure Evil.

Pure Evil crows and celebrates by setting off fireworks. The Supreme Being refuses to accept
defeat and tries to take the map by shooting lightning at Pure Evil. It doesn’t work but they begin
fighting with their powers. Penelope tells everyone else it's time to go, and they run out of the
fortress.

Out on the frozen landscape again, Penelope asks Kevin why he chose to give the map to Pure
Evil. Kevin asks her if that’s what he actually did. Flashback to when the bandits were debating
the feasibility of their fantasy futures all co-existing. While everyone is distracted, Kevin and
Saffron take their backpacks off and switch lunch boxes. Inside the fortress, the Supreme Being
has left and Pure Evil opens the lunchbox and finds Saffron’s art.

The bandits congratulate Kevin and Saffron on fooling Pure Evil and preventing the Supreme
Being from enacting the Great Reset. Kevin hands the other lunch kit to Widgit, and the bandits
begin planning what they can do with the map now.

Widgit opens the lunch kit and pulls out a large folded and torn piece of paper that is definitely
not the map. Everyone panics. In the distance, The Cherub and his conspirators scurry off with
the map.
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0102 (The Cherub); 0109 (The Cherub); 0110 (The
Cherub)

Karen O’Leary........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinininen.. 7

0101 (Stomachface); 0102 (Stomachface); 0103 (Stom-

achface); 0105 (Stomachface); 0106 (Stomach-
face); 0108 (Stomachface); 0110 (Stomachface)
Con O'Neill ...uii i e 1
0103 (Sheriff of Nottingham)

Jose Palma .......cooiiuiiiiiii i e e 1
0102 (Balam Cupul)

Olivia Parker ........ooiiiiiiii i i 1
0105 (Martha’s Assistant)

Yvette Parsons ......cooeviiiiiiiii i 1
0103 (Screaming Woman)

Maaka PohatU.........ooiiiiiiiiiiii i eieeeeens 2

0109 (Gavin); 0110 (Gavin)

Shane Rangi............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 7
0101 (Demon); 0102 (Demon); 0103 (Demon); 0105
(Demon); 0106 (Demon); 0108 (Demon); 0110

(Demon)
Matty Rockel ... 2
0107 (Grunt); 0108 (Grunt)
ChrisRyan ... 1

0103 (Dennis)

Saraidde Silva..........coiiiiiiiiii i 1
0110 (Vice Admiral)
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Bryony Skillington ... 2
0107 (Kaga); 0108 (Kaga)

Irene Skillington ... 1
0108 (Elsie)

Elijah Smyth-Ruru...................oooon 1
0110 (Gavin Junior)

Andrea Solonge...........ooiiiiiiiiiii i 2
0104 (Madame Queenie); 0106 (Queen Inari)
Tapiwa SOropPa ...c.vuvii it 2

0104 (Doorman); 0110 (Large Doorman)
Jeff Szusterman...........oovviiiiiiiniiiiininininnaens 1

0110 (Miltary Commander)

[S17SY 0 T8 1 o) s 0 £=To ) o WA 2
0109 (Hen The Giant); 0110 (Hen The Giant)
JaCKSON TOZeT . ..ottt et eiaees 2
0103 (Soldier James); 0108 (Goth Robert)

Tomoka TsuyuKi..........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiian, 1
0104 (Tomoe Gozenn)

SOtiriS TZEHOS « oottt 1

0101 (Amphimachus)

Michael Valamios .........ouvuininiiiniiiniiiennnnn... 2
0101 (Odysseus); 0109 (Odysseus)
Z0€ VeNtOUTA ..t ot ettt it e i e eien e 3
0101 (Cassandra); 0109 (Cassandra); 0110 (Cas-
sandra)
Graham Vincent............ovuviiininiiinininennnennnenns 1

0104 (Barfly)

Paul Waggott ..ot 2
0107 (Chieftain); 0108 (Chieftain)
Taika Waititi.......coooiiiii e 4

0104 (Supreme Being); 0106 (Supreme Being); 0109
(Supreme Being); 0110 (Supreme Being)

Mararo Wangai.........oooviiiiiiiniiininininininnenen.. 1
0106 (Farba)

Felicity Ward ..ot 2
0108 (Mrs. Haddock); 0110 (Mrs. Haddock)

CocoWhite ...t e 1
0108 (Lisa)

Campbell WIlKins .......coooiiiiiiiiii i 1
0101 (Scott)

Katlyn Wong. ..ot 3

0101 (Madame Chung); 0103 (Madame Chung); 0110
(Madame Chung)
David WoodS. ....ouieiiiei e 1
0108 (Chris Wilcock)
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